DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 436 069 EC 307 533

AUTHOR Hudson, Christine; Christ, Susan; Heartfield, Scott;

Carpenter, Ciela; Sheffler, Gary; Simonson, Peter; Lowes,

Bonnie; Brown, Pat

TITLE The Transition from School to Supported Employment:

Information for Teachers about Supported Employment and the

Adult Service System.

INSTITUTION Washington Univ., Seattle. Department of Rehabilitation

Medicine.

PUB DATE 1998-07-00

NOTE 35p.

PUB TYPE Guides - Non-Classroom (055)

EDRS PRICE MF01/PC02 Plus Postage.

DESCRIPTORS Agency Role; Community Programs; *Disabilities; *Education

Work Relationship; *Evaluation Criteria; Federal Regulation;

*Job Placement; Models; Secondary Education; Standards; State Agencies; State Regulation; *Supported Employment;

*Transitional Programs; Vendors

IDENTIFIERS *Washington (King County)

ABSTRACT

This guide is designed to provide teachers in King County, Washington, with a single resource for much of the information needed to help students with disabilities transition from school to adult life and to make informed employment decisions. It begins by providing an overview of federal and state regulations that affect students with disabilities during the transition from school to work. The guide describes two state agencies that help students with disabilities with the transition: the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation and the Division of Developmental Disabilities. The King County Developmental Disabilities Division and its functions are highlighted, including employment services in specialized industries, group supported employment, and individual supported employment. Community access services and special projects are highlighted. The Job Coach Model which provides job development, on the job training, long term follow-up, and replacement services in King County, is discussed. Quality indicators for supported employment vendors are listed and selection criteria for choosing a vendor is provided. The guide closes with a list of King County Developmental Disabilities Division Adult Services Contract Agencies. Attachments include a proposed plan for transition from school to adult life and a sample service delivery outcome plan. (CR)



The Transition from School to Supported **Employment:**

Information for Teachers about Supported Employment and the Adult Service System

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Educational Research and Improvement EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION

- CENTER (ERIC)
 This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it.
- Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality.
- Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy.

PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY

TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)

University of Washington Department of Rehabilitation Medicine **Employment Training Program** CHDD Box 357920 Seattle, WA 98195-7920 Tel (206) 543-6387 Fax (206) 543-4779

July 1998



This guide was developed by the staff of the University of Washington Department of Rehabilitation Medicine Employment Training Program.

Christine Hudson, Susan Christ, Scott Heartfield, Ciela Carpenter, Gary Sheffler, Peter Simonson, Bonnie Lowes and Pat Brown

Please direct correspondence to:

Pat Brown, Ed.D.
University of Washington
Employment Training Program
CHDD, Box 357920
Seattle, Washington 98195-7920
Tel (206) 543-6387
Fax (206) 543-4779



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction4Supported Employment: What The Law Says5Federal Regulations5State Regulations5County and Other Local Regulations5Agencies Involved In Supported Employment6The Division Of Vocational Rehabilitation6Informed Choice6Services Supported By the DVR7Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers9King County Developmental Disabilities Division10Employment Services10Community Access Services11
Federal Regulations 5 State Regulations 5 County and Other Local Regulations 5 Agencies Involved In Supported Employment 6 The Division Of Vocational Rehabilitation 6 Informed Choice 6 Services Supported By the DVR 7 Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers 6 King County Developmental Disabilities Division 10 Employment Services 10
State Regulations
County and Other Local Regulations 5 Agencies Involved In Supported Employment 6 The Division Of Vocational Rehabilitation 6 Informed Choice 6 Services Supported By the DVR 7 Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers 9 King County Developmental Disabilities Division 10 Employment Services 10
Agencies Involved In Supported Employment 6 The Division Of Vocational Rehabilitation 6 Informed Choice 6 Services Supported By the DVR 7 Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers 9 King County Developmental Disabilities Division 10 Employment Services 10
The Division Of Vocational Rehabilitation
Informed Choice
Services Supported By the DVR
Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers
King County Developmental Disabilities Division
Employment Services
• •
Community Access Services
Special Projects
Vendors
The Job Coach Model
Quality Indicators for Supported Employment Vendors
Choosing A Vendor
Some Questions To Ask Your Child Or Student And Yourself
Making Contact
King County Developmental Disabilities Division Adult Services Contract Agencies 19
Attachments 23
Attachment A Transition From School to Adult Life: Proposed IWRP Process 24
DVR Rehabilitation Plan
Attachment B Service Delivery Outcome Plan



INTRODUCTION

In our society, your first job signifies the first major move away from the protection and dependency of childhood toward the maturity and independence of the adult world. It is a momentous event in the life of any adult; it can be even more dramatic for an individual with a developmental disability. Often the changes in roles are as confusing and difficult for the parents as they are for their child.

We at the University of Washington's Employment Training Program would like to take this opportunity to share some of the information that we have accumulated over the years. We hope it will provide some insight into the transition process that might be useful to you in the months ahead.

This guide draws on our 20 years of experience in placing people with developmental disabilities into individual supported employment. It is designed to provide teachers with a single resource for much of the information needed to help students and families make informed employment decisions in the months to come.



SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT: WHAT THE LAW SAYS

Federal, State and Local government recognizes supported employment as a vital component in the broad spectrum of services provided for the vocational rehabilitation of people with disabilities. Each level has its own definitions, regulations, and process for providing these services. Funding is usually intricately interconnected between two and often all three levels of government. This interconnectedness is designed to create comprehensive services for people with disabilities, but also creates a confusing web of regulations and procedures that can appear daunting.

In an effort to help you navigate through these systems, we present this broad picture of the hierarchy of governmental agencies most likely to affect you and your son, daughter, or student during the transition from school to work.

Federal Regulations

Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The most significant federal law affecting adults with disabilities is the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. There have been many revisions since the act first passed. The 1992 Amendments to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 included supported employment as an acceptable employment goal for habilitation agencies, and defined supported employment as: "competitive work in integrated work settings for individuals with the most severe disabilities for whom competitive employment has not traditionally occurred; or for whom competitive employment has been interrupted or intermittent as a result of a severe disability." Implementation of the Rehabilitation Act is primarily assigned to the U.S. Department of Education, which oversees the Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services (OSERS).

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). This act precludes discrimination on the basis of a handicap in virtually all public and private enterprises, and provides the remedies available under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. This law is primarily enforced by the Equal Employment Opportunities Commission (EEOC) created by the Civil Rights Act.

<u>The Individuals with a Disability Education Act (IDEA)</u>. IDEA supports, at the federal level, transition services for students in special education classes in public high schools. This law is primarily enforced through the U.S. Department of Education.

State Regulations

The section of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) prohibiting discrimination in employment and education is RCW 49.60. The Washington Administration Code (WAC) which provides the rules and regulations for programs providing services to children with disabilities in public education is contained in Chapters 392-168, 171, 173 and 175.

County and Other Local Regulations

In addition to the State and Federal laws already mentioned, the City of Seattle has Seattle's Fair Employment Practices Ordinance (SMC14.04), and King County has the King County Fair Employment Ordinance (No.7340).



AGENCIES INVOLVED IN SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

The two state agencies that will be the most involved with your son's, daughter's, or student's adult services are the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) and the Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD). Both of these agencies are part of the State of Washington's Department of Social and Health Services.

At the local level, there are two new agencies that your child or student will become involved with as they move into the adult world. These are the King County Developmental Disabilities Division (KCDDD), in the King County Department of Community and Human Services, and the local Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. These agencies contract primarily with private, nonprofit vendors in the community that specialize in providing employment supports for people with developmental disabilities.

On the local level, KCDDD and DVR share responsibilities for vocational services for graduating students with developmental disabilities. DVR supports the initial services that require a more intensive daily investment of service, but over a limited time frame. These services include assessment, job development and placement, and on the job training until the person is considered stable in his new position.

The primary responsibility of KCDDD in employment services is to provide long-term follow up services for the length of the person's current employment. KCDDD also supports job development, placement, and on the job training at a new job, if the person loses their current job or chooses to change jobs. These are called replacement services.

THE DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

DVR becomes involved in transition services while the students are still receiving services from the public school system, typically during the student's last year of school (see Attachment A for a proposed Individualized Written Rehabilitation Plan process and a sample plan. The IWRP for students who are determined by the DVR counselor to be eligible for DVR services is completed prior to the student exiting school). Each high school in the state of Washington has a designated Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor. These VRC's make the initial contact with teachers and with the students preparing to exit, or graduate, from the public schools. The State DDD casemanager for employment services starts the paper work by referring those students eligible for transition services to DVR, along with any relevant reference material they may have, and a long term follow up agreement.

Informed Choice

In the DVR process, the participants (and their chosen representatives) are the decision-makers in any plan to achieve employment. The VRC and the vendor provide information about services about and service providers available to help a participant develop and implement the plan. The participant, VRC, and vendor act as a team to optimize an effective drive to employment. When members of the team disagree, negotiations should occur, including the involvement of family, advocates, and other DVR consultants when needed. Ultimately, participants have the option of taking their grievances to the Client Assistance Program (CAP) or requesting a fair hearing of the decision with which they disagree. This policy is known as Informed Choice.

Once a student is officially DVR eligible, the VRC recommends several agencies that are certified to provide the needed services. A list of King County agencies is included at the end of



this pamphlet. The participant, with the help of their chosen support person(s), contacts these agencies, interviews them, decides which one can best meet their needs, and reports their choice to the VRC. The VRC can also provide objective information about vendor services.

The VRC then arranges a joint meeting with the participant and the vendor. At this meeting, everyone reviews the participant's needs and preferences, and an employment plan is developed based on the DVR process for delivering services (see Attachment B). The purpose of the employment plan is to set well-defined goals that will lead the participant to employment. There must be some concrete measurement established to demonstrate that the goal has been met. These goals are to be completed within an established time frame. Frequently, short-term checkpoints are established within this larger framework, in order to review progress.

When all members of the team are satisfied with the plan, the VRC authorizes the services required. When the tem (participant, VRC, and vendor) agrees to the employment, everyone signs it. Within days, a service authorization for the vendor arrives. Now the stage is set to begin services.

More information about vendors in general, including a list of the agencies contracted by KCDDD to provide supported employment services and some suggestions on interviewing vendors has been included in this guide.

Services Supported By the DVR

DVR either provides employment services to individuals with disabilities or contracts with Community Rehabilitation Programs (CRPs) to provide the needed services. Often, CRPs are called vendors. The types of employment services that DVR typically supports are listed and defined below. We have included a description and explanation for each type of service.

<u>Definition of Community Rehabilitation Program</u>. The Washington State Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) defines a Community Rehabilitation Program (CRP) as an independent business entity that provides any of the following CRP vocational rehabilitation services for individuals with disabilities toward an actual employment outcome:

- 1. <u>CRP Employability Evaluation Services</u>. Assessment is a more familiar term. In this case, the kind of assessments vendors are asked to provide are situational and tied to specific questions the VRC, the participant, or the vendor want answered. These questions must relate to the participant's ability to work and are listed on the employment plan.
 - The vendor usually conducts the assessment at a work site. The vendor teaches the participant tasks that will generate the information requested in the Employment Plan. Typically, the client is not paid during the assessment period. The vendor then analyses the information and reports the results to the VRC and the participant.
- 2. <u>CRP Employability Preparation Services</u>. The employment team may develop a plan for employability preparation if the client's available background information, in coordination with the participant's own wishes, indicates that some intermediate steps might improve success on the job. These services may include:

Establishing a protective payee to promote financial responsibility,

Obtaining chore services to help the individual living alone to maintain their household,

Arranging mental health services for the participant,

Arranging for the participant to attend classes in typing or computer skills.



- 3. <u>Job Coaching Services</u>. The DVR definition of job coaching services is "On-the-job occupational skills training by a DVR participant with a specific employer." This is probably the service parents and teachers most associate with vendors.
- 4. <u>Job Placement Services</u>. DVR defines job placement services as: "locating, obtaining, and/or retraining for a DVR participant, consistent with his/her vocational goal, when the participant is unable to perform these job placement functions on their own or with direct assistance by DVR staff.



Region 4 DVR Offices and Phone Numbers

Cherry Hill Building 1700 East Cherry, N46-5 Seattle WA 98122	(206) 720-3200 V/TTY (206) 720-3222 FAX
14360 SE Eastgate Way, N40-3 Bellevue WA 98007-6462	(425) 649-4241 (425) 649-4330 FAX
15811 Ambaum Blvd. SW, N44-2 Burien WA 98166	(206) 439-6530 (206) 439-6531 (206) 439-6511 FAX
1715 S 324 th Place, N17-29 Suite 300 Federal Way WA 98003	(253) 872-2722 (253) 872-2955 FAX
12090 Central Ave South, N43-7 Suite 113 Kent WA 98032	(253) 872-2739 (253) 872-2950 FAX
723 SW 10 th N17-17 Renton WA 98055	(425) 277-7100 V/TTY (425) 277-7191 FAX
12063 15 TH Ave. NE, N17-11 Seattle WA 98125	(206) 368-4502 V/TTY (206) 368-4608 FAX



KING COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES DIVISION1

KCDDD contracts with the Washington State Division of Developmental Disabilities to provide day services for people with developmental disabilities at the local (King County) level. A board of King County residents, who volunteer their time and services to the agency, directs it. The King County Board holds public meetings the first Wednesday of every month, from 9:00 am to 11:00 am, in the Key Tower (700 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3800). Citizen participation is encouraged.

The primary responsibility of KCDDD in employment services is to provide long-term follow up services for the length of the person's current employment. KCDDD also supports the job development, placement, and on the job training for a new job if the person loses their current job, or chooses to move to a new one. These are called replacement services.

The County also partners with DVR to pay for initial placement services by providing DVR with some of KCDDD's funding. This allows DVR to gain additional dollars through a federal match, called a *Proviso*, dedicated to providing initial placement services for people with developmental disabilities. This partnership increases the dollar value of KCDDD funds expended, encourages outreach to persons not currently receiving services, and often speeds up the DVR eligibility process.

The King County Developmental Disabilities Division contracts for three different types of employment services in addition to contracting with vendors to provide community access services.

Employment Services

- 1. Specialized Industries. Specialized industries are more commonly called sheltered workshop employment. It is designed to hire persons with significant disabilities who would not otherwise be employed. Typically, this employment opportunity is developed through subcontract work that nonprofit agencies negotiate with private industries. The workers are usually paid on a piece rate basis. Piece rate is derived from the rate at which a unit of work would be produced against an industry standard. For example, if the normal production of a unit would be 10 units per hour at \$8.00 per hour, each unit would then be worth \$.80. If a worker produced 5 units, they would be paid $5(\text{units}) \times .80 = 4.00 . In order to pay by the piece at sub-minimum wage, agencies must comply with the Department of Labor standards and be certified.
- 2. Group Supported Employment (GSE). The employment of individuals with disabilities on community based sites in groups of no more than eight individuals is called group supported employment. By federal definition, the employment must be performed in locations where other persons without disabilities also work. The most common form of GSE is contract janitorial or landscaping work performed at business sites throughout the community through a subcontract with the employer agency. The service is designed to serve people with

Seattle, Washington 98104-5038,

Phone (206) 296-5214, TTY/TDD (206) 296-5238 Fax (206) 296-5260

Website http://www.metrokc.gov/dchs/ddd/3.htm



¹ For more information about KCDDD employment and community access services, contact:

King County Developmental Disabilities Division

Department of Human and Community Services, 700 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3800

significant disabilities who need direct supervision and training to sustain employment. Individuals are paid according to industry standards relative to their productivity rate. The productivity rate is established by assessing the individual in performing an amount of work, which is compared with an industry standard. For example, if 100 square feet of flooring can be cleaned in an hour at \$8.00/hour, a worker who took 1.5 hours to complete the task would be assessed as having a 67% production rate. The hourly wage would be \$8.00 x .67 = \$5.36. The worker would then be paid this wage until the next assessment, which is legally mandated to take place every 6 months.

An enclave is another form of GSE. In this arrangement, a business hires a group of workers with disabilities to work as a unit within the business. The same rules of pay as above apply to this situation.

3. <u>Individual Supported Employment.</u> This program supports competitive employment for individuals with disabilities in integrated business settings, for comparable wages, typically within the community. Agencies develop or locate jobs, place individuals in those jobs, provide training on the job site, and supply follow-up technical assistance to the individual and business as required to maintain employment.

Community Access Services

Community access services began as part of the community-based, inclusionary trend of recent years. Community access services assist people with disabilities to gain access to community activities in which people without disabilities also participate. These services may include planned activities, special assistance, advocacy and education that is individualized to address the growth and interaction needs and desires of persons with disabilities. Individuals are assisted in identifying their own interests and exploring their community in personally meaningful ways.

Contracted community access programs "promote greater involvement in the community, and focus on "personal preference, independence, behavior change, bridge building, life enrichment, and use of generic facilities and resources." Community access services can also act as preemployment training to build job skills, or offer companionship and respite for other care providers. Community access includes many elements of community life ranging from socialization, recreation, or volunteer work to life skills such as grocery shopping. Many individuals, after learning how to utilize a variety of public services, such as access transit or Metro transit, may not need structured community access programs.

Special Projects

KCDDD also funds special projects. On one such project, the Individual and Family Empowerment Project, helps individuals with disabilities in King County find employment. It puts choice and control of resources in the hands of the individuals and families. With assistance from project staff, each individual, along with at least one family member or other significant support person, develops an individual plan. He or she will have one-time county funds available to spend on whatever is needed to meet his or her employment goals: training, job development, on-the-job support, or equipment. For information about the Individual and Family Empowerment Project, contact the Washington Initiative for Supported Employment (WISE) at (206) 343-0881.



VENDORS

Students with developmental disabilities transitioning from school into employment are often most successful with vendors that offer the full array of supported employment services. In King County, such services are generally based on some variation of the Job Coach Model and are expected to provide job development, on the job training, long term follow-up, and replacement services. Vendors are also expected to facilitate the development of natural supports at the work site.

The Job Coach Model

The key elements of a job coach model are:

- 1. <u>One-on-one Training</u>. Vendor staff members provide services to the participant on a one on one basis. These staff members are generally called job coaches, employment specialists, job trainers, or employment coordinators.
- 2. <u>Job Development</u>. The employment specialists are responsible for finding a job that meets the participants needs, preferences, and skill level. Your child or student should be able to visit the proposed site and accept or reject employment there. The more flexible your child or student can be about job location, hours, or tasks, the more likely that they will quickly find a good job match. It is important to discuss with the VRC and the employment specialist which aspects of the job description about which you can be flexible.
- 3. On the Job Training. Before the participant begins the job, the employment specialist will observe or perform the tasks the participant will need to learn. Often they develop a list of the steps required to perform each task. They may also pinpoint some possible trouble spots, or organize the way the participant will perform their job on a daily basis. This is called *task analysis and job structuring*.

Once the participant begins the job, the job coach is responsible for teaching the person to perform their daily tasks to the speed and quality standards of the work place. They also make sure the participant is meeting all their other work related obligations, such as arriving to work on time, interacting socially with coworkers and supervisors in an appropriate manner, and meeting the grooming standards of the work place. The employment specialist will also develop strategies for problem solving, such as appointing one coworker as a reference person when questions arise.

During this initial training period, the employment specialist will also will make sure that the participant can get to and from work independently, and that lines of communication are set up between the work site and the home. The participant should be as responsible for these links as their skill level will support.

- 4. <u>Natural Supports</u>. Employment specialists use a set of training strategies called *natural supports* to ensure that neither the participants nor their coworkers become too dependent on the presence of the employment specialist. Some of the aspects of developing natural supports include:
 - Helping coworkers and supervisors relate to their new team member. As quickly as
 possible, supervisors are asked to assume their characteristic role of teaching and
 overseeing work performance. Some agencies prefer to discuss needed employment
 supports with coworkers before the participant begins the job.



- Using rewards or consequences drawn from the standard procedures used for all employees.
- Using the needs of the individual to determine the level of trainer support. When participants operate at their optimum level of independence from the very first day, patterns of self-reliance are more readily established.
- Fading as quickly as possible (see below). However, before the job coach begins leaving, she should observe that there is a comfortable rapport established between the participant and the coworkers.
- Consulting with the work place to help the employer trouble shoot any problems that arise, and providing on-site intervention during complex or crisis level situations.
- 5. <u>Fading</u>. Once the participant can perform their tasks to the quality and speed standards of the work place, the job coach begins to leave the job site for increasingly longer lengths of time. This process is called *fading*. By fading slowly, the participant can increase the time they work independently, allowing them to build confidence on a series of small successes.
- 6. <u>Long term follow-up</u>. After the individual is fully independent and the placement is considered stable, the job trainer continues to contact the worksite, but at increasingly greater intervals of time between contacts. This continues throughout employment and is called long term follow-up or follow-along.

As part of their contract with KCDDD, vendors are also expected to advocate for the same benefits such as raises, vacation time, and sick leave, as are received by coworkers. They may also advocate for promotions or acquiring new tasks requiring greater levels of skill and responsibility, if the participant expresses interest in this. If the participant loses his job, the vendor must offer replacement services or help coordinate alternative services at the request of the participant



Quality Indicators for Supported Employment Vendors²

Supported employment services for people with developmental disabilities have evolved rapidly over the last quarter century. Today, there is general agreement on the underlying values which foster quality services. Vendors demonstrate their support of these values, and strive to provide quality services, by including key elements in their services. We call these key elements quality indicators.

Programs with contracts or agreements from government agencies such as the Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD) or the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) will be required to meet the standards of those agencies in order to receive funding. These standards typically incorporate many of the indicators listed below.

Vendor develops job opportunities that incorporate the stated needs and expectations of the individual client with the values and expectations of the community at large.

- Clients work in an integrated setting, with opportunities to socialize with co-workers both during and after work.
- Vendor assures salary commensurate with others at work site doing comparable work.
- Vendor finds jobs that offer benefits, the possibility of advancement, and pay increases.
- Vendor training strategies promote independent job performance.
- Vendor ensures that employer provides all necessary supervision.
- Vendor draws on resources at the job site to develop appropriate supports for the individual client.
- Vendor adjusts level of direct support to needs of specific client, readjusts level of support when client's needs change.
- Vendor can demonstrate a history of placements in a wide range of job types, salaries, and hours.
- Vendor can demonstrate a marketing strategy that operates over a wide network of businesses, both public and private.
- The client is advised of the current market trends when making employment decisions.

Services promote a dignified, respectful image of adults with developmental disabilities to the community at large.

- Vendor's promotional material presents a positive image of a person with a developmental disability as a valued employee.
- Employment Specialists provide a positive role model for interacting with a person with a developmental disability in both public and private situations.
- Vendor requires Employment Specialists to adhere to guidelines for acceptable behavior. Policies stipulate consequences for unacceptable behavior.
- Vendor provides training and education in values based services and provides incentives for Employment Specialists to attend.
- Training techniques, attitudes, and motivators are age appropriate unobtrusive, and compatible with client's specific work environment.
- Vendor has a reputation for supporting inclusion of people with a developmental disability in all arenas of community affairs.

² Adapted from: Nisbet, J. & Hagner, D. (1988). Natural supports in the workplace: A reexamination of supported employment. <u>Journal of the Association for Persons with Severe Handicaps</u>, 13(4), 260-267



• Vendor's mission statement reflects this perspective.

Services clearly provide opportunities for client choice, for client participation in decision making, and for lodging and arbitrating client complaints.

- Vendor listens and responds to the expectations of the individual client.
- Vendor elicits and is open to, job leads from the client and members of their support group.
- Decisions concerning the type of job pursued, location of job, hours/week, days worked, shift worked, pay range, etc. are made with direct input from the client and their designated representative.
- Changes in any of these decisions are made with direct input from the client and their designated representative.
- Client has an opportunity to view a potential job and accept or reject it.
- Vendor has an established procedure to address complaints and arbitrate disagreements.
- Vendor cooperates and interacts with a wide variety of community based employment providers.

Vendor individualizes services to the stated and assessed needs, interests, and abilities of their client with a developmental disability.

- Vendor provides services in a timely fashion.
- Vendor creates a unique service plan for each client.
- Vendor respects and encourages client choice and participation. These priorities are clearly stated in the vendor's policies and procedures.
- Vendor can provide assessments of the client's specific skill level, in real work situations, as appropriate.
- Vendor's tracking system differentiates and offers services in 5 main service areas: assessment, job development, placement, on-the-job training, and follow-up (including job replacement).
- Vendor can offer multiple payment options and help coordinate the best option for the individual client.
- Vendor works with individuals with a wide range of abilities.
- Vendor's caseload reflects the cultural, economic, and ethnic diversity of the community they serve.

The vendor's organizational structures and procedures should reflect their awareness of valued services.

- Vendor has an advisory board that includes employers, people with disabilities, parents/family members of people with disabilities and representatives of a variety of ethnic and cultural backgrounds.
- Vendor has a written Mission Statement that reflects the idea that people with disabilities, from all ethnic and cultural backgrounds, have a right to integrated, community-based employment when they can do the work.
- Vendor maintains a tracking system for employment outcomes and reviews it frequently.
- Vendor is involved with students before graduation from high school (IEP's, transition planning, etc.).
- Vendor encourages employers to provide evaluations of worker's performance and feedback on vendor's employment procedures.
- Vendor offers in-service training for parents, families, and interested persons.



- Vendor's offices are wheelchair accessible and can be readily reached by car (van) or bus.
- Vendor has access to specialized services necessary to accommodate cultural and ethnic diversity, such as interpreters.
- Vendor has established outlets for outreach to ethnic and culturally diverse communities.



CHOOSING A VENDOR

Parents, teachers, or home support counselors usually become the spokesperson for the participant while choosing a vendor. It is useful for parents to get together with their son/daughter, and perhaps their DVR counselor, to determine the types of services that the young adult wants and needs from a vendor.

Some questions to ask your child or student and yourself.

- Are you looking for part time or full time employment?
- What areas of the county are you willing to travel to? What type of transportation will you be using?
- What kind of benefits do you want, need?
- Do you prefer to wait in order to find the best possible job match, or is it more important to start work quickly?
- Will you require long-term follow up? Are there other alternatives to agency support that could assist you?
- Can you, or another person in your support community, provide job leads or participate in some of the employment activities?

Other questions, which will become important later in the job development process, include:

- How much money do you need to make?
- How do you manage multiple tasks?
- Which area(s) represents your greatest strength: quality, speed, or cooperation with others?
- Can you work independently? Do you need supervision to work continuously and problem-solve adequately?
- Can you be successful at a job that relies primarily on physical strength? Some academic skills? Some fine motor skills?
- How important are social contacts at work to you? Is socializing likely to interfere with your work performance?

Making Contact

Now that you have your general outline of the services that you are looking for, and some questions you want to ask the agency, you are ready to make contact. Your VRC will give you two or three vendor references. You may also choose to contact additional vendors. We have included a list of vendors with KCDDD contracts in this pamphlet.

You may choose to either interview over the phone or ask for a meeting. If you are interviewing over the phone, remember to give the vendor some information about who you are, who you represent, and where you are in the job-seeking process (i.e. Are you signed up with DVR? Did a DVR agency recommend the vendor?). You can let them know you have a list of questions, so that they understand that you are prepared for this situation and you have your own agenda. Be sure you have a pencil and paper to take notes.

Once you have gathered your information, you can go over it with your child or student. You may want to make a chart together, with headings for each of the agencies and a column for Pros and Cons under each heading. This should provide a way to compare each agency and decide which agency is best for you. If you need additional information, don't hesitate to call back and find out what you need to know.



When you have made your decision, let your VRC know your choice. Your VRC can then arrange a meeting with you, your child, an agency representative, and the VRC. Now the serious business of finding employment can begin.



ERIC°

KING COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES DIVISION ADULT SERVICES CONTRACT AGENCIES Effective January 1998

ADDRESS PHONE SERVICES P. O. Box 98000, MS 20-1 (206)878-3710, x Individual employment & Community access 9800	9125 - 15th Place So. (206)764-0454 Individual employment Seattle, WA 98108 (206)764-0452 fax	ay,	911 Battersby Street (253)852-3650 Specialized industries & P. O. Box 619 (253)852-3651 fax individual employment Enumclaw, WA 98022	2501 South Plum Street (206)322-4200 Specialized industries & group Seattle, WA 98144 (206)329-3397 fax supported employment	(206)762-2112 -2438 No FAX	(206)285-9140 (206)286-2300 fax	101 Stewart, Suite 1100 (206)269-0232 Individual employment & special Seattle, WA 98101 (206)269-0302 fax projects	h Street (206)243-2561 98146	1808 Richards Road, Suite (425)562-1231 Individual employment 120 Bellevue, WA 98005-3944	PO Box 7404 (253)891-8463 Individual employment Bonney Lake, WA 98390	1701 Broadway, 2NP101 (206)587-3813 Individual employment Seattle, WA 98122	1600 East Olive Street (206)324-2400 Individual employment Seattle, WA 98122 (206)324-9433 fax
ORGANIZATION/CONTACT HIGHLINE COMMUNITY COLLEGE, P. O. DISTRICT 9 Judy Luther, Coordinator, Programs for the 9800 Handicapped	Area Program Director	ERVICE	INDUSTRIAL SKILLS Pamela Aldridge, Acting Director Enu	LIGHTHOUSE FOR THE BLIND George Jacobson, Director Sea	S. fanager	丑	CIATES	SS	JNNEL SERVICES or	RIOS EMPLOYMENT & CONSULTING PO SERVICES INC Barbara Doty	ENTRAL COMMUNITY S, Program Director	INSTITUTE ctor;



ORGANIZATION/CONTACT	ADDRESS	PHONE	SERVICES
SENIOR SERVICES OF SEATTLE/KING COUNTY	1601 Second Avenue, Suite 800	(206) 448-5757	Child development & specialized industries
Terry Kimball, Deputy Director	Seattle, WA 98104		
SHORELINE COMMUNITY COLLEGE John Elmer, MSSW, CP Program Dir;	16101 Greenwood Avenue N Seattle, WA 98133	(206) 546-5832	Community access
SKCAC INDUSTRIES Bob Swartout, Executive Officer	19731 Russell Road South Kent, WA 98032	(253)395-1240	Specialized industries & group supported employment
S.L. START Ken Kuhta	18120 Bothell Way NE, Suite A2 Bothell, WA 98011	(425)485-0880	Individual employment
SOUND EMPLOYMENT SERVICES Carole Holleman, Executive Director	709 NE Northlake Way Seattle, WA 98105	(206)634-3459	Individual employment
TRILLIUM Trish Borden, General Manager	P. O. Box 206 Auburn, WA 98071-0206	(253)735-1553	Individual employment
TURNER ASSOCIATES Lisa Turner, Director	10032 Sand Point Way NE Seattle, WA 98125	(206) 524-5751	Community access
UNITED CEREBRAL PALSY OF KING-SNO COUNTIES	14910 - 1st Ave NE Seattle, WA 98103	(206) 363-7303	Specialized industries, group supported & individual
U.K. Elosson, Executive Director			employment, community access
UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON REHABILITATION MEDICINE Pat Brown, Program Director	Employment Training Program CHDD Box 357920 Seattle, WA 98195-7920	(206) 543-6387	Individual employment
VADIS NW Chris Christianson	1701 Elm Sunner. WA 98390	(253) 863-5173	Group supported employment & individual employment
WA COALITION OF CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES Karen Brekke, Acting Director	4649 Sunnyside Ave., N., Suite 100 Seattle, WA 98103-6900	(206) 461-4550	Consumer guidance & assistance
WASHINGTON STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY Ed Clark, Administrator, Job Connection	2531 Rainier Avenue South P.O. Box 22510 Seattle, WA 98122	(206)721-5987	Individual employment
WASHINGTON INITIATIVE FOR SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT (WISE) Leslie Smith, Executive Director	83 South King Street, Suite 410 Seattle, WA 98104.	(206) 343-0881	Special projects



SERVICES	pecialized industries	
	Specializ	
PHONE	(425)778-2156	
ADDRESS	6515 - 202nd Street SW Lynnwood, WA 98036- 5998	
ORGANIZATION/CONTACT	WORK OPPORTUNITIES, INC. Phillip McConnell, Executive Director	



TRANSITION FROM SCHOOL TO ADULT LIFE: PROPOSED IWRP PROCESS

ACTIVITY	PURPOSE	DATE
Introduction and orientation to DVR	To give information to students in a large group setting, answer initial questions, and hand out release of information forms to be signed by the parents.	At the school in September or early October
Information exchange	Upon return of the release of information forms, school sends all appropriate records to the DVR counselor.	DVR counselor receives records by late October.
Individual DVR counselor/student meetings.	DVR counselor meets individually with students to determine future plans and gauge students awareness of their disability. For students under 18, the parents should be present since applications are usually taken at the end of this meeting.	May be scheduled at the school or at the DVR office during November/early December.
DVR counselor adds completed applications to his/her caseload	Putting applications on-line and completing required paperwork.	Completed in January
Students complete financial aid form	In order to receive services from DVR, students (and their parents) must complete the financial aid form available from the school counseling center.	Completed in late January/February
DVR counselor, student, and parent (as appropriate) meet.	Students must come to this meeting with a completed financial aid form. The purpose of this meeting is to write the IWRP.	Mid-spring (March/April/early May)



Name:

SSN:

Staff Assigned: Plan Number: 1

Vocational Goal: Forklift Operator

This rehabilitation plan, based on vocational assessment, includes die intermediate objective(s) and planned services necessary to attain your vocational goal. To help you attain your employment outcome, you will be provided essential counseling and guidance. If plan amendments are needed in the future, they will be jointly developed with you.

Facility/School Name: Goodwill Industries

Specific Primary and Support Service	Start Date	Finish Date	Total Service Costs	Cost to Others*	Cost to DVR
Short-term work skill building at	09/11 /1997	10/30/1997	\$600.00	\$0.00	\$600.00

Goodwill paid by DVR.

* None

\$0.00

Criteria for evaluating progress and outcome:

agrees to attend training daily unless ill.

Facility/School Name: Goodwill Industries

Specific Primary a	and Support Service	Start Date	Finish Date	Total Service C	osts Cost to Others	Cost to DVR
Referral to Goods	Counseling and guidance by DVR. Referral to Goodwill for job Development paid by DVR.		09/30/1998	\$525.0	00 \$0.00	\$525.00
* None	\$0.00					
Transportation for purchase of bus pass at \$25.00 per month paid by CPS or DVR.		09/11/1997	09/30/1998	\$300	-00\$ 300.00	\$0.00
*CPS	\$300.00					
Clothing for job semployment paid		09/11/1997	09/30/1998	3 \$ 150	00 \$0.00	\$1150.00
* None	\$0.00					

Criteria for evaluating progress and outcome

agrees to maintain at least weekly contact with Jack at Goodwill and twice monthly contact with DVR.

Facility/School Name: TASC					
Specific Primary and Support Service	Start Date	Finish Date	Total Service Costs	Cost to Others*	Cost to DVR

^{*}Comparable services and benefits





Name: SSN:

Staff Assigned: Plan Number: 1

Vocational Goal: Forklift Operator

Outpatient counseling at TASC paid by CPS. TASC \$1,200.00	09/11/1997	09/30/1998	\$1,200.00	\$1,200.00	\$0.00
#AM agrees to remain drug free and attend at least 1-2 AAINA meetings per week. * ANNA 40.00	09/1111997	09/3011990	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00

Criteria for evaluating progress and outcome:

_____ agrees to remain drug free and attend meetings as outlined.

^{*}Comparable services and benefits



Page 2

Name: Staff Assigned: Plan Number: 1 Vocational Goal:		SSN:						
ag	rees to the terms and	conditions of our r	ehabilitation plan.					
			Total Service Costs \$2,775.00	Cost to Others \$1,500.00	Cost to DYR \$1,275.00			
Financial statement	completed:	□No						
Source Start Date Finish Date Monthly Amount Total Amount Family and Friends. 09/11/1997 09/30/1998 \$300.00 \$3,600.00								
services and benefit outlined in this plar jointly developed p you making satisfac towards your vocati	ts have been explore In will be provided bat Ian will assist you to Ctory progress, consitional goal will be rev	d and reviewed, and used on available fun achieve your vocat stent with the object viewed at least ever	tehabilitation, community reso the results are incorporated in the results are incorporated in the results are in a re- tional goal. Continuation of the tive evaluation criteria contain by 90 days. The responsibilities are wed by the Undersigned.	n this plan. The easonable expect is plan will be coned in this plan.	services ation that the ontingent on Progress			
PARTICIPANT COMN	MENTS		☐ Post Employment Serv Assistance Program (C participant.					
Review dates			VRC Signature	Date				
Participant/Parent/Gu	lardian Signature	Date	Supervisor Signature	Date				

*Comparable services and benefits

BEST COPY AVAILABLE



Page 3

Name:	SSN:
Staff Assigned:	

CRITERIA OF ELIGIBILITY FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES

You are eligible for vocational rehabilitation services when it has been determined that:

- 1. You have a physical, mental, or sensory Impairment which for you constitutes or results in a substantial Impediment to employment;
- 2. You can benefit in terms of an employment outcome from vocational rehabilitation services; and
- 3. You requite one or more primary vocational rehabilitation services to achieve your employment outcome.

CRITERIA OF ACCEPTANCE FOR EXTENDED EVALUATION SERVICES

You are eligible for extended evaluation only when it has been determined that:

- 1. You have physical, mental, or sensory impairment which for you constitutes or results in a substantial impediment to employment and
- 2. Your ability to benefit from vocational rehabilitation services in terms of an employment outcome is questionable due to the nature and severity of your disability.

CRITERIA FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND CONTINUATION OF THE INDIVIDUALIZED WRITTEN REHABILITATION PROGRAM (IWRP)

YOUR COUNSELOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1. Work with you to jointly identify and Implement changes to your program.
- 2. Provide ongoing counseling and guidance and follow-up services to ensure completion of the program insofar as possible.
- 3. Review this program with you, at least quarterly to make sure that progress is being made.
- 4. Work with you In a professional and ethical manner consistent with DVR. policy.

YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS A PARTICIPANT

- 1. Make all reasonable efforts to reach the intermediate objectives and vocational goal.
- 2. Request and obtain pre-authorized approval from your counselor rot any additional services or changes to this program.
- 3. Maintain satisfactory progress as contained In the evaluation criteria for your program.
- 4. Maintain contact with the counselor to report progress in the program, including providing copies of grades and transcripts and immediately reporting change of financial and/or living circumstances.
- 5. Keep all appointments with your counselor and other scheduled aspects of the program.
- 6. Cooperate and follow through with medical and other professional instructions.
- 7. Use all comparable services and benefits Including student financial aid as specified by this program.
- 8. Notify your counselor when employed and provide details or employment.
- 9. You are expected to participate in periodic and annual reviews of the program.

YOUR RIGHTS AS A PARTICIPANT

- 1. You are to be fully consulted regarding any significant changes to your program.
- 2. You may discuss a problem or grievance with the counselor or the counselor's supervisor at any time.
- 3. If at any time you am dissatisfied with any decision made by DVR. you have the right to an administrative review and/or a fair hearing (CFR 361.48). Services contained in-this rehabilitation program cannot be terminated during the appeal process.
- 4. You are to be advised of the Client Assistance Program.
- 5. You are to be provided the opportunity-to participate in an annual review of any ineligibility decision.
- 6. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Washington State laws, and DSHS policy prohibit discrimination based on the grounds of sex, race, creed, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, disabled veteran status, Vietnam Era veteran status, disability, or age.
- 7. All information DVR obtains about you is voluntary but necessary to accomplish your rehabilitation and will be kept confidential. Information will only be released with your permission to others involved in your rehabilitation (CFR 361.49(a)(3)(1-v).

CHANGE AND TERMINATION OF THE PROGRAM

Your jointly developed program does not represent a legal obligation for DVR and is subject to change on the basis of changing circumstances and new information. It may be terminated and you may be declared Ineligible on the basis of finding that you can no longer benefit from DVR services or no longer require primary DVR services to achieve an employment outcome. If information you provide to DVR is found to be false or incorrect this may be grounds to suspend or terminate your program.





BEST COPY AVAILABLE

DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION COMMUNITY REHABILITATION PROGRAM (CRP) SERVICE DELIVERY OUTCOME PLAN

						7	Attachment B	Page_1_of_1_
DVR PARTICIPANT	IPANT		SOCIA	SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER	ABER	COMMUNITY REHABILITATION PROGRAM (CRP)	ON PROGRAM	I (CRP)
John Q.			123-4	123-45-6789		ABC Rehab Inc.	:	
AFP NUMBER	~	OVERALL TIME LINES	VES			STAFFING INTERVALS		
1-000000		From: 7/18/97	To:	то: 9/18/97		Every two weeks at the DVR office on Tuesdays	VR office o	n Tuesdays
Service Cat	Service Category: (check one per plan)	one per plan)						
☐ Employab	☐ Employability evaluation	☐ Employability preparation	lity prepara		☐ Job coaching	☐ Job placement ☐ Ex	□ Extended support services	ort services
NUMBER	EXPI	EXPECTED OUTCOME		PARTY RESPONSIBLE	ONSIBLE	PURCHASE AND PAYMENT CRITERIA	CRITERIA	COST
#	John will learn the employer's computerized inventory data in system to a level of performan acceptable to the employer as industry's standards for compeemployment.	John will learn the employer's computerized inventory data information system to a level of performance acceptable to the employer as meeting this industry's standards for competitive employment.	mation ting this e	Allen/ABC Rehab Inc.	hab Inc.			
	It is expected the DVP, VRC and progress report throughout this notify the VRC consideration fr	It is expected that the CRF will provide the DVP, VRC and John with a written progress report on a weekly interval throughout this plan and immediately notify the VRC of any problems requiring consideration for an amendment or	ovide the n al ely equiring					
	possible termin	possible termination of this plan.			·			
PARTICIPANI	PARTICIPANT SIGNATURE	DATE	CRP SIGNATURE	URE DATE		DVR SIGNATURE DATE		TOTAL
John Q.		7/12/97	Allen	,	7/12/97	Lee Ruddy	7/12/97	





U.S. Department of Education

Office of Educational Research and Improvement (OERI)
National Library of Education (NLE)
Educational Resources Information Center (ERIC)



REPRODUCTION RELEASE

	(Specific Document)	
I. DOCUMENT IDENTIFICATIO	N:	
Title: The Transic	ion from school to	supported)
enplaymen	cion from school to f: Infamation forte Demplayment and t	Weres about.
Author(s): Keedson	eval	anices favores, sig
Corporate Source:	versity of ellasking	Publication Date:
. wa	nolument Thomas	Panan July, 1998
II. REPRODUCTION RELEASE	<u>.</u>	
monthly abstract journal of the ERIC system, F and electronic media, and sold through the El reproduction release is granted, one of the folio If permission is granted to reproduce and disc	ole timely and significant materials of interest to the ed Resources in Education (RIE), are usually made availa RIC Document Reproduction Service (EDRS). Credit owing notices is affixed to the document.	ble to users in microfiche, reproduced paper copy t is given to the source of each document, and,
of the page. The sample sticker shown below will be affixed to all Level 1 documents	The sample sticker shown below will be affixed to all Level 2A documents	The sample sticker shown below will be affixed to all Level 2B documents
PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY	PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL IN MICROFICHE, AND IN ELECTRONIC MEDIA FOR ERIC COLLECTION SUBSCRIBERS ONLY, HAS BEEN GRANTED BY	PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL IN MICROFICHE ONLY HAS BEEN GRANTED BY
sandie	sangle	sandle
TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)	TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)	TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)
1	2A	2B
Level 1	Level 2A ↑	Level 2B
X		
Check here for Level 1 release, permitting reproduction and dissemination in microfiche or other ERIC archival media (e.g., electronic) and paper copy.	Check here for Level 2A release, permitting reproduction and dissemination in microfiche and in electronic media for ERIC archival collection subscribers only	Check here for Level 2B release, permitting reproduction and dissemination in microfiche only
	ments will be processed as indicated provided reproduction quality reproduce is granted, but no box is checked, documents will be pr	
as indicated above. Reproduction f contractors requires permission from	sources Information Center (ERIC) nonexclusive perm from the ERIC microfiche or electronic media by per the copyright holder. Exception is made for non-profit r ators in response to discrete inquiries.	sons other than ERIC employees and its system

Sign here, >

Organization/Address:

Unweistry (Uaskington 206-543-6387 FAX: 06-543-4779)

EMail Address:

U. Washington. Edu (over)

III. DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY INFORMATION (FROM NON-ERIC SOURCE):

If permission to reproduce is not granted to ERIC, or, if you wish ERIC to cite the availability of the document from another source, please provide the following information regarding the availability of the document. (ERIC will not announce a document unless it is publicly available, and a dependable source can be specified. Contributors should also be aware that ERIC selection criteria are significantly more stringent for documents that cannot be made available through EDRS.)

Publisher/Distributor:		
Address:		
Price:		
V. REFERRAL OF ER	RIC TO COPYRIGHT/REPRODUCTION F	RIGHTS HOLDER:
If the right to grant this reproducti address:	on release is held by someone other than the addressee, ple	ase provide the appropriate name and
lame:		
Address:		
V. WHERE TO SEND	TI 110	
	ERIC Clearinghouse on Disabilities	-
Send this form to the following I	and Gifted Education	
	1920 Association Drive	•
	Reston, VA 20191-1589	
		
However, if solicited by the ERI contributed) to:		form (and the document being
continuited) to.	EDIC Presenting and Reference English	

ERIC Processing and Reference Facility

1100 West Street, 2nd Floor Laurel, Maryland 20707-3598

Telephone: 301-497-4080 Toll Free: 800-799-3742 FAX: 301-953-0263

e-mail: ericfac@inet.ed.gov WWW: http://ericfac.piccard.csc.com

EFF-088 (Rev. 9/97)

